
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Council Chamber, Leighton-Linslade Town Council, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton 

Buzzard LU7 1HD 

6 May 2022 
 
To:  Members of the Health Services Task and Finish Group (Councillors D Bowater, 
R Goodchild, V Harvey, S Jones, T Morris, S Owen and G Perham) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Health Services Task and Finish 
Group to be held on Tuesday, 17 May 2022 commencing at 12.00 pm in the Council 
Chamber, Leighton-Linslade Town Council, The White 
House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard LU7 1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s Register 
of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by the 
Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 
 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3 (e)(f)(g) and 3(h). 
 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


HEALTH SERVICES TASK AND FINISH GROUP Tuesday, 17 May 2022 
 

 

 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Health 
Services Task and Finish Group meeting held on 4 March 2022 (attached) in 
accordance with Standing Order 12.  
(b) To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous 
meeting (if appropriate). 
 

5.   HEALTH SERVICES IN LEIGHTON-LINSLADE (Pages 5 - 18) 

 

 To receive and consider three information papers provided by Councillor Steve 
Owen and agree any next steps (attached).   
 

 

*Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, officer 

or member of the public. No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into exempt 
session. The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Task and Finish Group Aims (agreed 5 March 2020): 
 

1.     To press Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) and Central Bedfordshire 
Council’s Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) to bring forward proposals urgently for a Leighton-
Linslade Health Hub as part of a planned approach to improved localisation of hospital services 
for local residents and to secure the town’s fair share of Government investment in the localisation 
agenda. 
 2.     To press for the development of that Plan to include local GPs and professions ancillary, 
patient groups and the Town Council, to promote, encourage and support early and regular 
consultation with residents of the parish in terms of the services to be provided and the location of 
the Hub. 
 3.     To pursue, in consultation with the three groups mentioned above, that this comprehensive 
Plan shall include: 
(a)   A Leighton-Linslade Hub providing a range of services that are currently provided by 
hospitals or not at all 
(b)   The accommodation and investment requirements of existing GP surgeries in the town 
(c)   Planned GP surgeries serving the new developments on the eastern side of the town and 
also Linslade residents, who used to have two GP surgeries but now had none. 



   
   

Page 20 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH SERVICES TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
 

FRIDAY 4 MARCH 2022 AT 1230 HOURS  
 

Present: Councillors  G Perham – in the Chair 
  S Jones 
  T Morris 
  D Bowater 
  V Harvey 
  S Owen 
          

                      Also in attendance:       M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 
  S Sandiford (Deputy Town Clerk) 
  A Selous, MP  

 
       Members of the Public:   0  

 
 
29/HS APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor R Goodchild. 
 
Councillor T Morris joined the first part of the meeting remotely but later joined 
in person.  
 
Apologies had been received from Patricia Coker and Councillor Tracey Stock 
of Central Bedfordshire Council and from Beth Collins and Nikki Barnes of the 
Beds, Luton and Milton Keynes Clinical Commissioning Group.   The group was 
advised that representatives of CBC and BLMKCCG hoped to be able to attend 
a next meeting in June/July 2022 in order to give an update on the integrated 
care hub programme.  
 

30/HS DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Councillor D Bowater declared a personal interest as a member of the East 
London Foundation Trust.  
 
No pecuniary declarations were made or dispensations requested. 

 
31/HS QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 There were no members of the public present.  
 

 32/HS MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

(a) The Task and Finish Group received the minutes of the Health Services 
Task and Finish Group meetings held on 18 October 2021 and 10 November 
2021. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Health Services Task & Finish Group 4 MARCH 2022 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 21 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health Services Task and Finish Group 
meetings held 18 October 2021 and 10 November 2021 be approved as a 
correct record and were signed accordingly. 
 
(b)  Updates arising from the previous meeting: 
 
Minute reference 28/HS: Cllr V Harvey confirmed she had spoken with 
Professor Sir Sam Everington regarding the Bromley-by-Bow health hub 
example and it was understood that one of the local GP practices had also done 
this. The value of social prescribing and keeping people fit and healthy could 
not be over estimated in reducing pressures on the healthcare system. It was 
understood that social prescribing funding often did not cover the cost of the 
actual activities themselves.  

 
33/HS INTEGRATED CARE HUB FOR LEIGHTON-LINSLADE 
 

(a) The Group received the report presented to the Central Bedfordshire 
Council Executive on 7 December 2021 in response to the Motion submitted by 
Councillor V Harvey about raising the prioritisation of the Leighton-Linslade 
Health Hub, as well as the minutes of that meeting recording the Executive’s 
decision to reject the motion.  
 
(b) The Group received email correspondence from P Coker of Central 
Bedfordshire Council, dated 19 January 2022, in response to the letter sent on 
behalf of the Task and Finish Group following its meetings in October and 
November 2021. This noted that the request for sight of the Strategic Business 
Case for a health hub should be picked up with BLMK CCG as owners of the 
document.  
 
(c) The Group received the draft Central Bedfordshire Plan Caring Together 
2021-2025 as presented to the CBC Health and Wellbeing Board on 26 January 
2022 for information.  
 
(d) The Group received an update from Mr Selous in respect of 
correspondence from the BLMK Clinical Commissioning Group about the 
number of full-time equivalent GPs and practice nurse numbers for every 10,000 
registered patients. This information indicated a significantly lower proportion of 
staff for direct patient care in South Bedfordshire primary care networks when 
compared to Central Bedfordshire, Bedfordshire Luton and Milton Keynes, the 
East of England or the whole of England. The Task and Finish Group shared 
the MP’s concern at this shortfall.  
 
Mr Selous advised the group that he was continuing to lobby Government for 
clearer funding arrangements for general practice capacity for all new large 
scale housing developments, as well as the availability of Treasury capital for 
NHS capital projects.  
 
(e) The Group discussed possible next steps in light of the information 
received as set out above.  

 

Page 2



Health Services Task & Finish Group 4 MARCH 2022 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 22 

Firstly, it was agreed to write to the Central Bedfordshire Health and Wellbeing 
Board and BLMK CCG as follows: 
 
(i) To object to the continuing use of the metric “number of patients per 
square metre” as a basis for prioritising the development of the five integrated 
care hubs. It was understood that an integral part of the reason for hub 
development was in order to migrate additional services from hospitals into the 
community, as well as bringing together a range of existing services and 
functions (which extended beyond those provided solely by existing GP 
practices).  The distance which Leighton-Linslade patients had to travel to a 
hospital when compared with the other four hub locations and the size of 
population for the area did not seem to be taken into account when determining 
the priority order of the five hubs. 
(ii) To query why money was not being allocated to each of the five health 
hubs as to leave three unfunded did not appear to be an equitable use of public 
monies.  
(iii) To repeat the request made since December 2020 for sight of the 
strategic outline case for the Leighton-Linslade health hub. 
(iv) To request clarification on exactly when and how the service modelling 
work required for the development of the business case would be undertaken 
and to what extent the Town Council and local community would be involved in 
this work.   
(v) To ask the Central Bedfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board and BLMK 
CCG to engage more actively with the Town Council on these issues.  
 
Secondly, it was agreed that the key priorities for those bodies responsible for 
developing and expanding healthcare services in Leighton-Linslade were 
considered to be: 
 
(vi) That engagement take place with GP practices and the wider community 

to develop a plan of what services were wanted for the town – the local 
vision. 

(vii) To ascertain which hospital services could be made available in the town. 
(viii) To ascertain how much space was needed across existing and new 

premises to deliver the services identified above. 
(ix) To determine how many more GPs and primary care staff would be 

needed for service delivery and when they could be available. 
 

A view was expressed that the priority was about service delivery rather than 
the question of one or more physical buildings. Local service delivery and more 
pro-active use of social prescribing would reduce the pressure on hospitals.  
 
It was suggested that the local primary care network might already be some way 
towards developing the local vision and might be in a position to share this 
information.   
 
RESOLVED to write to Central Bedfordshire Council, BLMKCCG and the 
Primary Care Network in respect of points (i) - (ix) above. 
 
 
 

Page 3



Health Services Task & Finish Group 4 MARCH 2022 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 23 

34/HS HEALTH HUBS: BEST PRACTICE 
 

This item had been covered under Minutes of Previous Meeting.  
 
35/HS CORRESPONDENCE FROM BASSETT ROAD SURGERY PPG 
 

The Group received a copy of correspondence sent from the Bassett Road 
Surgery Patient Participation Group to the primary care network and BLMKCCG 
in respect of ear wax removal services.  
 
Although recognising that this was no longer considered a core service by the 
NHS, a request was made to consider its provision locally as patients could 
currently only access this service privately and it would make a considerable 
difference to the day to day lives of many.  
 
RESOLVED to support the request made by the Bassett Road Surgery PPG  
to the local primary care network and BLMKCCG in respect of ear wax 
removal services.  

 
 
The meeting closed at 1400 hours. 
 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 4 MARCH 2022. 

  

 

Chair         17 MAY 2022 

Page 4



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Health Task & Finish Group 

17 May 2022 

Information paper 1 from Cllr Steve Owen 

Summary of position 

 

1. The new information from the BLMK CCG/CBC/SO exchange (paper 2)  

 Nullifies the CCG/CBC basis for Leighton’s low prioritisation and 

 Contradicts the CCG/CBC position that no funding is available 

 

 

2. The meeting on 8.4.2022 at Bassett Road surgery confirms that 

 There is no spare space at the three surgeries 

 The GPs support both the Health Hub and additional surgeries which do not 

threaten the business models at the three surgeries 

 The GPs have not been consulted over the CCG Strategic Outline Case. 

 

3. The lack of a Health Hub is costing local patients over £1 million per annum and 

inflicting major unnecessary environmental damage. A major unnecessary cost to 

local hospitals and so the taxpayer is not being tackled. 

 

4. The Parliamentary debate confirmed that The Government are committed to a robust 

process of creating health infrastructure from housing development (a possible 

revised delivery mechanism is awaited). 

 

 

5. There is great local support both for the Integrated Health Hub and for GP surgeries 

in both the East and West of the town. 

 

6. The CCG, CBC, and the joint Health and Wellbeing Board are not engaging with the 

Town Council, local GPs and supporting staff, or the community. They are dismissing 

those voices.  

 

Action is needed by the Town Council and our MP on both Hub and new Surgeries, i.e.  

 Prioritisation 

 Funding 

 Location 

 Services scoping 

 Consultation 

 

(Cllr) Steve Owen 

29 April 2022.  

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Health Task & Finish Group 

17 May 2022 

Information paper 2 from Cllr Steve Owen 

Exchange of messages between BLMK CCG, CBC, and SO 

 

 
 

                                                              24th March 2022   
Ms C Macrdechian   
Principal Planning Officer   
Central Bedfordshire Council   
Priory House   
Monks Walk   
Chicksands   
Shefford   
SG17 5TQ   
 
Dear Ms Macrdechian,   
 
Re: CB/22/01086/FULL - 44 dwellings - Leighton Buzzard Garden   
Centre, Hockliffe Road, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 9NX   
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above planning application. 
Consideration of the  potential consequences of this development and the health 
infrastructure implications has been  undertaken on behalf of Bedfordshire, Luton and 
Milton Keynes Clinical Commissioning Group (BLMK  CCG).   
This development, should the application be successful, will affect the Leighton Buzzard 
practices. The  premises of Leighton Buzzard practices are deemed constrained. Premises 
constraints affects a  surgery’s ability to take on new patients and even additional GPs and 
allied clinical staff, especially with  the requirement to offer a wider range of patient 
services from GP Practices, including mental health and  community services and some 
outreach specialist services from local hospitals, delivering care locally  and reducing 
referrals into hospitals.   
This application will result in circa 114.4 additional patient registrations and create a 
constraint that will  require premises reconfiguration, extension or even re-location to 
create additional clinical capacity.  Ongoing discussions with Central Bedfordshire Council 

Page 7



are taking place in relation to the CCG’s proposal  to develop an Integrated Health and Care 
Hub for Leighton Buzzard.   
For this reason, in order to make this development acceptable to NHS commissioners, it is 
requested that  a contribution is made towards the provision of new integrated health and 
care healthcare facilities in  Leighton Buzzard, supporting the delivery of the NHS long term 
plan.   
For clarity: Primary Care is commissioned by BLMK CCG, having taken over this 
commissioning  responsibility from NHS England on 1 April 2019 and this response should be 
taken as the full NHS reply  for consultation purposes.   
The primary care calculation is based on the following principle adopted across the NHS 
England  Midlands and East region to provide consistency for all the 25 local authorities 
comprising that area and  as part of the single operating model of best practice it has 
developed. It has been consistently accepted  by local planning authorities.   
 
This figure is based on the following breakdown:  w x 2.6 = x   
Multiply the numbers of dwellings in any given development (w)   
by 2.6 to give x new patients   
x/2000 = y   
Divide the number of patients by 2000 to give the numbers of GPs needed (y)   
(based on the ratio of 2,000 patients per 1 GP (as set out in the NHS England   
“Premises Principles of Best Practice, Part 1 Procurement & Development”)   
y x 199 = z m2 of additional GMS space   
Multiply the number of GPs required by 199 to convert to new GMS space (199  m2 ) being 
the amount of floor space required by each GP (again as set out in the  NHS England 
“Premises Principles of Best Practice, Part 1 Procurement &   
Development”)   
z x £3,150* = £   
Multiply the floor space by £3,150 which represents build cost per m2 including fit  out and 
fees to give a total cost (£)   

£/number of dwellings = £814.90 (rounded to £815 per dwelling)  Dividing the total build 
cost by the number of dwellings provides a standard  contribution required from each 
new dwelling towards the cost of providing GMS  services for that development  

 
44 dwellings x 2.6 = 114.4 new patients   
114.4 / 2,000 = 0.0572 GP (based on ratio of 2,000 patients per 1 GP and 199m2 as set out 
in the NHS  England “Premises Principles of Best Practice Part 1 Procurement & 
Development”)  0.0572 x 199m2 = 11.3828 m2 additional space required   
11.3828 x £3,150 (build costs including fit out and all fees) = £35,855.82   
£35,855.82 /44 = £814.90 rounded up to £815 per dwelling = £35,860.00   
   
The requested total contribution of £35,860.00 is calculated only on the number of 
additional new  registrations and patient activity requirements this development will 
generate and will therefore contribute  proportionately towards the costs of provision of a 
new integrated health and care healthcare facility in  Leighton Buzzard.   
In terms of trigger points with regard to S106 developer contributions, it remains the case 
that the earliest  possible developer contributions are vital to mitigate the health impact of 

Page 8



the additional residents. BLMK  CCG puts the delivery of services to patients first and 
increasingly the need to support the viability and  resilience of GP practices, their ability to 
cope with increasing patient numbers and the requirement to  provide more services locally, 
in line with the NHS Long Term Plan.   
I trust this information is sufficient for you to proceed. However, should you have any 
questions, please  do not hesitate to contact me   

   

Yours sincerely   

 
Collette How   
Estates Officer  
Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes Clinical Commissioning Group  
Performance and Governance Directorate  Capability House  
Wrest Park  
Silsoe  
Bedfordshire  
MK45 4HR  
Planning email address:  
blmkccg.planningconsultations@nhs.net 
……………………………………………………………… 
 

Health Infrastructure and Planning Applications 
 
Steve Owen  
 

Wed, Mar 30, 5:24 
PM 

 
 
 

to blmkccg.planningconsultations@nhs.net 

 
 

(For the attention of Ms Colette How, Estates Officer, Bedfordshire Luton & Milton 
Keynes Clinical Commissioning Group,or a colleague in her absence) 
 
Dear Ms How 
I found your letter (attached) of 22 March 2022 to CBC re a current planning 
application. I welcome the contents and intent of your letter. 
 
May I seek your help with a few related questions: 
1. Have your Estates Group within BLMKCCG been sending similar letters to Central 
Bedfordshire Council re past multi-dwelling applications, and if so over roughly what 
period? If it hasn't been a routine procedure, was there some aspect of this particular 
application that caused you to change your usual approach? 
 
2. Your letter contains some figures and a formula referenced "NHS  England “Premises 

Principles of Best Practice Part 1 Procurement & Development”)  . Do you know from what date 
this guidance was issued and did something similar precede it? And does the 
formula apply only to GP premises or is it more widely applicable? 

Page 9



 
3. The calculation in your letter ends with a requested figure of £35,860, and that 
paragraph then identifies the destination of this funding as " a new integrated health and 

care healthcare facility in  Leighton Buzzard." Is there a reason why additional GP surgery 
space is not also mentioned?  
 
4. It looks as if the costs quoted are for buildings - if that is right, what is your 
understanding of the source of revenue to recruit and pay the additional GPs (and 
associated clinical staff) needed for this growth? (If you prefer to direct me to a 
colleague elsewhere in the CCG for an answer, please do). 
 
4. Earlier in your letter is the sentence "The  premises of Leighton Buzzard practices are deemed 

constrained."  Does this conclusion come from your Estates Group (in which case, is 
there some summary was of explaining how it has been reached) or from elsewhere 
in the CCG, or from outside the CCG? 
 
Thank you in advance for any help you can provide, and I hope that Leighton-
Linslade Town Council' Planning Committee, which I serve on, acting as a consultee 
on this particular application, may be expressing similar views to CBC. 
 
Best wishes 
Steve Owen 
Leighton-Linslade Town Councillor 
 

……………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

PLANNINGCONSULTATIONS (NHS BEDFORDSHIRE, LUTON 
AND MILTON KEYNES CCG) 
 

  
 

 

27 April 2022 1:08 PM  

to Nikki, Laura, me 

 
 

Dear Councillor Owen, 
  
Thank you for your emails and apologies for the delay in getting back to you, it took a 
bit of time for other colleagues to come back to me due to Easter annual leave. I 
hope the below answers all of your questions and should you require any further 
information or clarification then please do not hesitate to come back to me. 
  

1. Have your Estates Group within BLMKCCG been sending similar letters to Central 
Bedfordshire Council re past multi-dwelling applications, and if so over roughly what period? 
If it hasn't been a routine procedure, was there some aspect of this particular application 
that caused you to change your usual approach? 

  

We have been responding to planning application consultations from Central 
Bedfordshire Council directly since 2017. We also do the same for Bedford Borough 
and Milton Keynes Councils, and are currently in discussions with Luton Borough 
Council to establish a similar process. 
  

Page 10



The CCG has worked with the Local Authority Planning teams to ensure any health 
requested contribution is fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 
development, taking into account viability issues for smaller developments.  The 
following thresholds have been agreed with, and supported by, the local authorities: 
  

 Cases for primary care only are made for developments of between 10 and 50 
dwellings. 

 Cases for primary care, community and mental health provision are made for 
larger developments of between 51 and 150 dwellings. 

 Cases including the above criteria, plus a contribution for secondary/acute 
provision are made for developments in excess 150 dwellings. 

  
2. Your letter contains some figures and a formula referenced "NHS  England “Premises 

Principles of Best Practice Part 1 Procurement & Development”)  . Do you know from what date 
this guidance was issued and did something similar precede it? And does the formula apply 
only to GP premises or is it more widely applicable? 

  
The NHS England Premises Principles of Best Practice date back to the period 
leading up to publication of The National Health Service (General Medical Services - 
Premises Costs) Directions 2013.  We do expect these to be revised but have been 
informed by NHS England this is not yet published and are awaiting the new, 
updated Premises Cost Directions.    
  
In terms of how the figures are calculated - the General Medical Services (GMS) 
primary care figures are based on each Local Authority’s average occupancy per 
dwelling; Central Bedfordshire Council use 2.6 (based on average occupancy of new 
dwellings), and other Local Authorities use a different number to reflect their 
demographic, therefore our primary care formula differs slightly depending on which 
Local Authority a development falls within.  This gives the number of likely additional 
residents and is the basis for the remainder of the formula to ensure the request is 
directly related to the size of a development.  The ratio of 2,000 patients per 1 GP 
(as set out in the NHS England “Premises Principles of Best Practice, Part 1 
Procurement & Development.”  Then multiplied by (199 m2 ) being the amount of 
floor space required by each GP (again as set out in the NHS England “Premises 
Principles of Best Practice, Part 1 Procurement & Development”). The build cost per 
m2 includes fit out and fees to give a total cost and used to reflect the fact that there 
is no capital funding for primary care premises.    
  
The Community, Mental Health and Acute requested contributions are calculated by 
activity type and recorded attendance data.  The activity type attendance numbers 
reflect a lower proportion of the population than the >90% first accessing healthcare 
via GP provided General Medical Services. 
  
Every effort is made to ensure a CCG request for a S106 developer contribution is 
tailored to each individual development. This tailored process, together with the 
agreed thresholds is considered the fairest and most reasonable methodology in the 
CCG’s opinion.  The methodology has been accepted by the Local Authorities the 
CCG works with and at Appeal stage.  Currently there is no national methodology, 
although the Department of Health & Social Care (DHSC) has started a national 
programme to understand the current planning capability across the health system 

Page 11



and exploring options to develop a DHSC central planning resource to support local 
NHS leaders to work more effectively with Local Authorities and to understand best 
practice opportunities for CIL and S106 to mitigate the impact on health 
infrastructure.   
  

3. The calculation in your letter ends with a requested figure of £35,860, and that paragraph 
then identifies the destination of this funding as " a new integrated health and care healthcare 

facility in  Leighton Buzzard." Is there a reason why additional GP surgery space is not also 
mentioned? 

  
When we request the funding we take into account planned local projects as per the 
CCG’s Primary Care Estates Strategy, or alternatively identify the closest GP 
practice(s) to the development, or for more rural developments the practice(s) whose 
patient boundaries include the development area.  This is to ensure the health 
request is directly related to the development and benefits the most constrained 
practices to get funding to extend, reconfigure or even relocate their practice to best 
suit the population needs and growth.  In this case the proposed Leighton Buzzard 
Health and Care Hub would benefit all three of our Leighton Buzzard practices as 
opposed to a small update to an existing practice from such a modest 
request.   Should we not identify a specific practice or project then it leaves us open 
to push back from the developer because they will expect to see a specific named 
project. 
  

4. It looks as if the costs quoted are for buildings - if that is right, what is your understanding of 
the source of revenue to recruit and pay the additional GPs (and associated clinical staff) 
needed for this growth? (If you prefer to direct me to a colleague elsewhere in the CCG for 
an answer, please do). 

  

S106 developer contributions are relevant towards the infrastructure impact of 
additional residents only, and therefore relate to the changes required to healthcare 
premises to facilitate the additional demand and capacity expected as a result of the 
extra residents.  The primary source of funding for practices to employ their clinical 
teams is via the General Medical Services contract, whereby practices receive an 
income based on the number of patients registered with the practice and as an 
outcome of changes implemented through the annual NHS England contract 
negotiations.    GP practice income increases proportionately in line with growth of 
their list size. Groupings of GP practices known as Primary Care Networks (PCNs) 
are able to access additional NHS funding to recruit a range of clinical and non-
clinical staff to work across and support the practices in the PCN grouping this 
includes e.g. Clinical Pharmacists, Paramedics, Social Prescribers.    
  

5. Earlier in your letter is the sentence "The  premises of Leighton Buzzard practices are deemed 

constrained."  Does this conclusion come from your Estates Group (in which case, is there 
some summary was of explaining how it has been reached) or from elsewhere in the CCG, or 
from outside the CCG? 

  
The CCG has an agreed methodology, supported by planning officers, for 
establishing if a premises is space constrained or not. This is based on the internal 
size of the premises and measured against the number of patients registered with a 
particular practice, as well as knowledge of the primary care estate layout.   Whilst 

Page 12



the measure is relatively crude, it offers a reasonable indicator for comparing levels 
of constraint across practices.    
  
Premises Constraints are decided as follows: 

 18 – 20 patients per square metre (ppm2) approaching constraint.  
  

 20 – 22ppm2 constrained.  
  

 Over 22ppm2 severely constrained. 
  
  
Kind regards 

Collette 

  
Collette How 

Estates Officer 
  

Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes Clinical Commissioning Group 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Health Task & Finish Group 

17 May 2022 

Information paper 3 from Cllr Steve Owen 

Note of meeting at Bassett Road Surgery 8 April 2022 

 

Note for the record (intended in the first instance for the Bassett Road Surgery Patient 

Participation Group) 

Leighton Buzzard Health Hub 

Meeting at Bassett Road Surgery 8 April 2022 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Rose Gunter and Steve Owen of BRS PPG met Dr John Henderson and another representative of 

Bassett Road surgery on Friday, 8 April. Two Leighton Road surgery colleagues also attended and 

contributed helpfully to the discussion. 

 

2. HISTORY OF LEIGHTON BUZZARD HEALTH HUB 

Steve Owen summarised the current position re the future Leighton Buzzard Health Hub. BLMK 

CCG/CBC currently placed our Hub fifth and last of the priority order for the planned Health 

Hubs across Central Bedfordshire, and these two bodies had committed funding to implement 

the Dunstable and Biggleswade Hubs but not the other three. It was also noted that the Health 

Hub agenda (i.e. integration of local Health and Social Care services, and shifting services from 

hospitals to localities), ran hand in hand with a) the provision of GP services and also b) the 

agenda of the Primary Care Network services such as social prescribing. 

 

3. PRIORITISATION  

BLMK CCG/CBC’s reason for prioritising the Leighton Buzzard Hub fifth and last had been stated 

as the relative abundance of space at the three Leighton Buzzard GP surgeries compared to 

elsewhere in the CBC area. This is borne out by a CBC briefing note dated 11 October 2021 for 

Leighton-Linslade CBC councillors stating that CBC were accepting BLMK CCG’s prioritisation.  

 

However  

a) Dr Henderson repeated the point he had made at a Town Council meeting on 18 October 

2021, that all three GP surgeries were in fact short of space.  

b) This was confirmed for Leighton Road Surgery by the two LRS representatives.  

c) A letter from BLMK CCG to CBC dated 24 March 2022 [see information paper 2] confirmed 

that the three surgeries were full to the point of affecting their ability to take on new 

patients or accommodate additional GPs or allied clinical staff.   

d) This contradicts what other managers in BLMK CCG have said and used as their rationale for 

placing Leighton bottom of the priority list.  

e) The use of “spare GP surgery space” as the sole determinant of priority ignores the travel 

distance to hospital argument for Leighton-Linslade residents and the NHS savings 

achievable by localising certain hospital services for a catchment of 60,000 residents. 

f) The Leighton patient community was spending large sums of money travelling to 

surrounding hospitals [Note: later established at over £1 million pa.] 

Page 15



 

4. GP SUPPORT 

Dr Henderson confirmed that he and his BRS colleagues remained fully supportive of the 

Leighton Buzzard Hub and his understanding was that colleague GPs in the other two surgeries 

were of the same view. 

 

5. FINANCING 

Steve Owen updated on the Parliamentary debate on the funding of Health Infrastructure 

instigated by Andrew Selous MP on 29 March 2022. A Ministerial announcement on Health 

Infrastructure had been promised for within 2 weeks of that debate. [Note on 29.4.2022 – still 

awaited].   

SO commented that neither the CCG nor CBC had confirmed whether the permissioning by CBC 

of major new estates on the eastern side of Leighton Buzzard over the past 10 years had been 

used to lever S106 agreements with the developers for Health infrastructure projects such as the 

Leighton Buzzard Hub – a major opportunity missed.  

However it was noted that the Dunstable and Biggleswade Hubs were being funded partly 

through national Infrastructure funds and partly through capital funding allocated by BLMK CCG 

and provided to them by central government. There seemed to be no reason why those funding 

sources should not also be available to a Leighton Buzzard Hub once the need for the Leighton 

Hub to be accorded next top priority had been acknowledged by BLMK CCG. 

 

6. NEW GPs SURGERIES IN LEIGHTON BUZZARD AND LINSLADE 

Dr Henderson confirmed that the provision of a new GP surgery in Eastern Leighton Buzzard 

would not damage the business/financial interests of Bassett Road surgery and that BRS would 

welcome a new Eastern surgery.  [It will be helpful to have the same confirmation from the other 

two surgeries]. 

During Andrew Selous’ 29.3.22 debate the Health Minister confirmed the principle that new GP 

surgeries should be located in the midst of new development. This means the provision of a new 

GP surgery amid the Eastern Leighton Buzzard estates (and, picking up on a key point made by 

Andrew Selous in the debate that Government funding should have retrospection), that the 

Bideford Green and Knaves Hill estates justified a GP surgery located in Linslade too.  

 

The BLMK CCG 24.3.2022 letter [see information paper 2] centred on a request for a S106 

contribution for a new Leighton Buzzard Health Hub, arising from a current multi-home planning 

application for new Leighton Buzzard homes. Confusingly, the letter contained a national 

formula for translating new home numbers into GP surgery space and costs, but the stated 

destination of the money requested was for a Health Hub rather than a new Eastern GP surgery. 

Of course, both are needed. The CCG have subsequently confirmed they have been making 

similar requests to CBC for the past 4 years. [Steve Owen has written to CBC asking them to 

confirm the details, dates and amounts of money requested.]  

 

7. HUB SERVICES 

BLMK CCG/CBC are refusing to share or engage with the Town Council over the Strategic Outline 

Case for a Leighton Buzzard Hub which they have drafted. Dr Henderson confirmed that he and 

his colleagues have not been approached by BLMK CCG for private discussions on a possible 

slate of services in the Hub.  

It was noted that BLMK CCG/CBC are justifying their insistence that “consultation” has taken 

place,  on their very limited interaction with a small number of local GPs and residents in 2018. It 

Page 16



was also noted that BLMK CCG/CBC were continuing g to base their planning  on three possible 

locations for a Leighton Buzzard Hub that were inadequate, unsuitable and did not meet 

Government policy of being located centrally in towns (in order to facilitate public access). 

 

8. TOWN COUNCIL POSITION 

Steve Owen summarised. BLMK CCG and CBC officers and lead members had declined to attend 

a recent meeting of the TC’s Health group.  There was an absence of challenge at the CBC Health 

& Wellbeing Board, who were apparently accepting the inevitability of proceeding at whatever 

pace and in whatever direction BLMK CCG decreed. 

At its meeting on 4 April 2022 the Town Council by majority vote had rejected a call to inject 

greater urgency into the search for a Leighton Health Hub. However a minority of town 

councillors intended to press on, with clear public support. 

 

9. CONCLUSIONS  

1. The confirmation of “no space” at the 3 current Leighton surgeries removes the CCG’s 

justification of lowest priority for the Leighton Hub. Cost to the community and cost to the 

NHS added up to a compelling case for prioritisation. 

2. Funding sources for the Hub exist but have not been sought by either the CCG or CBC, 

identified and applied. 

3. New GP surgeries in Eastern Leighton and Linslade accord with current Government policy 

but BLMK CCG are ignoring that policy. 

4. Current GPs support the provision of the new Hub and new GP surgeries. 

5. BLMK CCG are disregarding their own consultation policy. 

 

10. SUGGESTED ACTION FOR THE PPG 

Suggested: 

a) BLMK CCG/CBC should be asked to make the Leighton Buzzard Hub their highest next 

priority in the light of the new information. 

b) The Town Council should be given the new evidence and asked to re-invigorate its current 

passive approach. 

c) BLMK CCG/CBC should be urged to search the funding sources used for the Dunstable and 

Biggleswade Hubs, and Andrew Selous should be asked to actively support this press. 

d) Pressure on BLMK CCG/CBC for a new GP surgery in Eastern Leighton Buzzard, and in 

Linslade, should be renewed, and again the support of Andrew Selous sought. 

e) Andrew Selous should be asked to table a Parliamentary Question regarding the CCG’s 

refusal to follow their own consultation policy in refusing the Town Council, local GPs and 

clinicians, and the town’s residents, a dialogue on both the preferred location of the Hub 

and on the range of services it will contain (the Strategic Outline case). 

 

f) BRS PPG are suggested to discuss and form a view on the points above and write formally to 

the Town Council, all local CBC councillors, and Andrew Selous MP, pressing their views, and 

consider asking Public Questions at the next CBC Health and Wellbeing Board meeting and at 

the next public meeting of the BLMK CCG.  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 HEALTH SERVICES IN LEIGHTON-LINSLADE
	Information paper 2 for LLTC Health TF Group 17.5.2022
	Information paper 3 for LLTC Health TF Group 17.5.2022


